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In the 

News 
• Scholars prominent in the 

fields of business, law, theatre 
and music will be joining the 
faculty this fall. Story on pages 
1 and 3. 

• Having visitors this 
summer and want to 
introduce them to the 
campus? Looking for a 
different way to spend your 
lunch hour? A campus tour is 
the answer! We've made it 
easy for you with a map and a 
multitude of suggestions for 
interesting spots on campus. 
See page 4. 

• Professor Gibbs' 
computer symposium and 
Dean Spong's goodwill trip to 
Europe and Russia head the 
list of "Newsmakers" on page 
3. 

• If you are planning a 
weekend trip, or even  next 
year's vacation, be sure to 
stop in at Swem Library. The 
reference staff maintains a 
pamphlet file that covers 
everything from Sherwood 
Forest's history to the animals 
found at the Chincoteague 
National Wildlife Refuge on 
the Eastern Shore. One 
section of the file is devoted 
to Virginia's cities, counties, 
historic landmarks and 
eminent citizens, while the 
other section contains 
information about other states 
and nations. The Reference 
Room is located on the first 
floor of the library. 

• New travel regulations 
have been issued by the 
Governor's office. Employees 
using their own cars for state 
business may now be 
reimbursed fifteen cents per 
mile. The State has also 
changed its insurance 
company for state vehicles. 
Details inside, under "Official 
Notices." 

• Common Glory dancers 
and actors have planned 
special performances on the 
first three Sunday evenings in 
August. Check the William 
and Mary News calendar for 
information. 

WINTER WONDERLAND IN JULY? It's only wishful 
thinking as summer's "dog days" settle over the 

Campus and temperatures soar to the nineties. 

New Eminent Scholars On Faculty 
To Include First Zollinger Professor 

Eminent scholars in the fields of 
business, law, theatre and music 
will be joining the faculty this fall. 

Thomas H. Williams, who has 
gained a national reputation in the 
academic and business 
communities for his expertise in 
the field of financial reporting, has 
been named first Zollinger 
Professor of Business 
Administration at the College. 

John Ritchie, professor at the 
University of Tennessee College of 
Law since 1974, and Dean and John 
H. Wigmore Professor Emeritus of 
Northwestern University School of 
Law, has been appointed Tazewell 
Taylor Visiting Professor of Law. 

Professional actor Arnold Moss 
will be Visiting Professor of Theatre 
and Speech. 

Arthur F. Schrader, a music 
associate and ballad singer at Old 
Sturbridge Village, Mass., for 
nearly fifteen years, will join the 
faculty as Visiting Professor of 
Music. 

Endowment funds for the 
professorships are augmented by 
the state through the Eminent 
Scholars program. 
Zollinger Professor 

Williams, professor of accounting 
and a member of the graduate 
faculty at the University of Texas, 
has been named to a professorship 
endowed by alumnus J. Edward 
Zollinger, '27, of Fort Lauderdale, 
Fla. Zollinger, former vice 

president and executive assistant to 
the president of IBM, serves on the 
Board of Visitors and is chairman of 
the $19 million Campaign for the 
College, which began in May. 

Charles L. Quittmeyer, dean of 

Visitor Named 
Aubrey L. Mason, a member of 

the Class of 1947, and executive 
vice president of the investment 
securities firm Mason and Lee, 
Lynchburg, has been appointed to 
the Board of Visitors by Governor 
Godwin. 

Mason fills the unexpired term, 
ending in March 1978, caused by 
the death of Dr. Garrett Dalton of 
Radford. 

A member of the Alumni Board 
from 1954-60, Mason was its 
president in 1956-57. He is 
currently a member of the 
President's Council, the Athletic 
Educational Foundation and the 
executive committee for the 
Campaign for the College. 

Mason is a recipient of the 
Alumni Medallion and a founder, 
along with his sisters and their 
father, of the Walter G. Mason 
Chair of Religion Fund. 

His wife, Vilma B. Mason, is a 
1949 alumna, and four of their five 
children attended the College. 

Mason recently completed his 
term as chairman of the board of 
Ferrum College. 

the School of Business 
Administration, cited Williams for 
"his outstanding record qi 
published scholarly research" as 
well as for "his innovative work in 
teaching both elementary and 
advanced financial accounting 
subjects." 

Williams was a member of the 
University of Illinois faculty for four 
years, prior to joining the 
University of Texas faculty in 1963. 
From 1967-71 he served as 
chairman of the university's 
accounting department, one of the 
largest in the United States. 

Over his academic career, 
Williams has at various periods 
concentrated on a variety of 
subject areas in accounting and 
related disciplines, including theory 
formulation and philosophy of 
science, mathematical modeling, 
information systems, managerial 
accounting and control systems, 
and the implications of capital 
market theory and research on 
accounting. 

He was accorded singular 
recognition when he was chosen 
for the James V. Forrestal Chair of 
Management at the Naval War 
College, Newport, R.I., in 1969-70, 
and for the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants 
(AICPA) Distinguished Visiting 
Professorship at California State 
University, San Jose, in 1972-73. 

Continued on Page 3 



Employment      Offices Note Staff Changes 

The following positions are open to 
all qualified individuals; however, 
current faculty and classified 
employees will receive first 
consideration. Except where noted, 
inquiries and application should be 
made at the Personnel Office, 201 
James Blair Hall, and not at the 
department where the opening 
exists. Call 229-fOBS (229-5627) for 
an updated listing and 24-hour 
service. An EEO/AA employer. 

CLERK D--$7,680 per year, Swem Library 
Night Supervisor, deadline 8-1-76. 

CLERK TYPIST C~$6,432 per year, 
Mathematics, deadline 7-30-76. 

FISCAL AND ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN- 
$8,784 per year, Treasurer's Office, 
deadline 7-29-76. 

♦ADMISSIONS DIRECTOR-Marshall Wythe 
School of Law, faculty-equivalent position. 
Masters degree minimum requirement. 
Salary commensurate with qualifications/ 
experience. Send resume before Aug. 1 to 
Richard Williamson, Associate Dean, Law 
School. EEO/AA employer. 

Official Notices 
Revised Insurance Coverage 
for State Pool Vehicles 

The State has transferred its pool 
car insurance policy to Transit 
Casualty Company. William and 
Mary's transportation officer, 
William T. Allen, advises employees 
operating state vehicles to notify 
both his office and an insurance 
representative as soon as possible, 
in the event of an accident 
involving a pool car. Information 
about accident notification 
procedures has been placed in the 
glove compartment of each of the 
state cars assigned to the College. 

Updated Travel Regulations 
The Governor's Office has issued 

new regulations governing 
reimbursement of travel expenses 
by officials and employees of the 
Commonwealth while traveling on 
official business. 

The Office of the Vice President 
for Business Affairs will provide 
copies of the new regulations to 
deans, department heads and 
supervisors in the near future. 

In recent weeks the State 
Personnel Office has approved a 
number of new appointments to 
classified positions at the College. 

Ivory Carey has joined the 
campus security force as a police 
officer. A member of the 
Gloucester County Sheriff's 
department before coming to 
William and Mary, Carey holds a 
certificate of criminal justice from 
Thomas Nelson Community 
College. 

Four recent William and Mary 
graduates are among the new staff 
members. Linda Horn (B.B.A., 1974) 
is a data entry operator in the 
Treasurer's Office. Before returning 
to Williamsburg, she worked as a 
bank examiner for a Richmond 
firm. 

Linda Baker (M.A., English, 1976) 
is a clerk typist in the Evening 
College office. 

Janet Shepherd, who has worked 
for the Alumni Society for the past 
year as a records clerk, is now 
clerk typist in the law school. She 
holds a B.A. in English from the 
College. 

A fourth William and Mary 
graduate, Patricia Ferguson (B.A., 
English, 1975), is clerk typist for the 
Applied Science program. 

Joining the Plant Department 
office as clerk typist is Jean Belvin. 
A graduate of Hampton High 
School, she worked for a computer 
science firm in Hampton for several 
years before joining the College 
staff. 

Charles Hall was recently 
appointed carpenter foreman in the 
Buildings and Grounds department. 
He has worked at the College 
previously on a temporary basis 
and is also self-employed as a dry 
wall contractor. 

Transferring from the power 
plant at Eastern State Hospital 
where he was a stationary boiler 
fireman, James Acheson has 
assumed new duties as a power 
plant shift supervisor at William 
and Mary. 

Anne Nealon, who graduated 
from Norfolk Business School as a 
professional secretary, is clerk 
stenographer for the Theatre and 
Speech department. 

In the News Office, Karen 
Detwiler has been appointed clerk 
typist. A graduate of the University 
of Illinois at Champaign-Urbana 
with a B.S. in Journalism, she 
worked previously for the 
Campaign for the College. 

Phyllis Holzenberg is a new clerk 
typist in the Registrar's Office. She 
graduated from Florida State 
University last year with a B.A. in 
History. 

Ann Barnes has also joined the 
Registrar's Office staff as a data 
entry operator. She transferred to 
the College from the State's 
Department of Mental Hygiene and 
Hospitals. A graduate of Richmond 
Business College, she was deputy 
clerk of the superior court in 
Halifax, N.C., for a number of 
years before returning to Virginia. 

Literary Prize 
Awarded For Poems 

Steven J. Ward '76 of Fairfax has 
been awarded the 1976 Tiberius 
Gracchus Jones Literary Prize for 
his collection of poems, West 
Virginia Album. 

Honorable mention was given to 
Madaline Herlong 76, Saluda, S.C., 
for an extract from her novel, 
Chr/salid; to James David Luse Jr., 
'76, of Newport Beach, Cal., for a 
play; and to Lindsey D. Eck '77, of 
Grafton, Mass., to Joseph M. Judge 
'78 of Potomac, Md., to David L. 
Robbins '76 of Richmond and to 
Robert L. Saunders '76 of Newport 
News for poetry. 

Judges for the prize, which 
honors a student who attended the 
College in 1844-45, were Thomas 
Heacox of the English department, 
Mark Gulesian of the School of 
Education and Cecil McCulley of 
the English department, chairman. 

Calendar 
JULY 27, TUESDAY 
HISTORICAL OUTDOOR DRAMA, 

"The Common Glory," Lake 
Matoaka Amphitheatre, 8:40 p.m. 
(In case of rain, Phi Beta Kappa 
Hall.) Performances nightly, 
except Sundays. 

JULY 30, FRIDAY 
DISSERTATION DEFENSE for 

Douglas F. Markle, "Preliminary 
studies on the systematics of 
deep-sea Alepocephaloidea 
(Pisces: Salmoniformes)," 
Conference Room of Byrd Hall at 
the Virginia Institute of Marine 
Science, 10:30 a.m. 

JULY 31, SATURDAY 
ORGAN RECITAL, Wren Chapel, 11 

a.m. No admission fee. 

AUGUST 1, SUNDAY 
TENNIS MATCH, MALTA Junior 

Wightman Cup competition, 
Adair tennis courts, all day. 
Competition continues through 
Wednesday, August 4. 

DANCE PERFORMANCE, "An 
Evening of Dance," by the 

Common Glory Dancers, Phi Beta 
Kappa Hall, 8:15 p.m. No 
admission fee. Program of 
traditional and modern dances 
choreographed by members of 
the "Glory" dance troupe. Music 
by Purcell, Bach, Paganini, 
Gilbert and Sullivan, and others. 

AUGUST 3, TUESDAY 
FACULTY MEETING, Millington 

Auditorium, 3:30 p.m. 

AUGUST 7, SATURDAY 
ORGAN RECITAL, Wren Chapel, 11 

a.m. No admission fee. 

AUGUST 8, SUNDAY 
THEATRE, "The Winter's Tale" by 

Shakespeare. Performed by the 
Common Glory's Shakespearean 
Players. Lake Matoaka 
Amphitheatre, 8:15 p.m. (In case 
of rain, Phi Beta Kappa Hall.) 
Fred Schmidt will play the lead 
role of Leontes in the romantic 
comedy. Playing opposite him 
will be Margot Knight in the role 
of Hermione. "Glory" director 
Howard Scammon will direct, 
assisted by Kent Thompson. 

Classifieds 
FOR SALE 

ST. BERNARD, 2 years old, male, very 
friendly. Loves kids, needs a good home. 
$25. Call Debbie at 887-1020 after 4 p.m. 
(7/27) 

REFRIGERATOR, call 220-2198. (7/27) 
SINGLE BED - box springs and mattress - 

$25; Pink and white gingham bedspread and 
bow-canopy, like new; both for $30. Call 
229-5009. (8/10) 

MINOLTA SR 7 camera with hard leather 
case and 55mm F2.0 lens, one filter and sun 
shade, VIVATAR light meter (fits accessory 
shoe), Kalimar electronic flash (uses 
batteries or cord). $100 or best offer. Call 
Dan at 877-7957 between 8-10 p.m. (8/10) 

ANTIQUE OAK bedroom set, very solid, in 
good condition (double size bed frame 
and posturepedic mattress, 2 dressers, 
mirror). $400 or best offer. Call Wendy at 
229-5182, evenings and weekends. (8/10) 

MOBILE HOME-Richardson 60'x12' 2 BR 
A/C, washer, new carpet/furnace/paint, 
semi-furnished, many extras, $3995. Call 
229-3527 after 6 p.m. (8/10) 

ANTIQUE WINDSOR CHAIR, lacquered 
walnut, $45. Call 220-0177 after 7:30 p.m. 
(8/10) 

1973 GRAN TORINO, 3-seat wagon. A/C, 
power steering and brakes, automatic 
transmission, luggage rack, new radials. 

radio. 27,500 miles. $2800. Call 564-3307 after 
5:30 p.m. (8/24) 

1973 YELLOW PONTIAC Lemans. Excellent 
condition, including tires. $2200 or best 
offer. Call 229-7976, or drop by room 209, 
Law School building. (8/24) 

SEARS 9x12 TENT, zippered windows, 
outside frame, good condition. $35 or best 
offer. Men's Spaulding Victor golf clubs; 2 
woods with head covers, 4 irons, very good 
condition. $30 or best offer. Call 229-0375. 
(8/24) 

GRAY DUTCH COLONIAL house with red 
door, 4 BR, central A/C, aluminum siding, 
fully carpeted. LR, DR, family room, kitchen, 
21/2 baths, garage. 6-ft. spruce fenced-in 
yard. Excellent grounds. $46,750. Call 
564-9748. (8/24) 

ELECTRIC BROOM (Kenmore Kwik 
Sweep), excellent condition, $10. Dinette set 
with 6 chairs, wood grain top, metal legs, 1 
table leaf. One year old, $55. Call 220-1280 
after 5. (8/24) 

PIANO-Kimball baby grand, superior 
quality pre-war model. Moving away. Only 
$525. Call 220-0357. (8/24) 

FOR RENT 

APARTMENT to sublet starting in late 
August. 2 BR, $160 per month plus 
electricity. Call 220-2198. (7/27)       - " 

BRAND NEW contemporary townhouse in 
Kitty Hawk, N.C. Magnificent panoramic 
view of the ocean and Kitty Hawk Bay. 3 Br, 
2% bath, all appliances, A/C. Sleeps 6, 2 
decks, $300/wk. No pets. 229-2712. (8/10) 

3-BR HOUSE near college, Sept. 
1976-mid-August 1977. Rented furnished; 
utilities not included. Wooded lot on 
dead-end street. Asking $300/month. Call 
F.R. Crownfield, Jr., 229-3480, or write to 
Physics Dept. (8/10) 

COMPLETELY PRIVATE portion of new 
home. 5-minute walk to campus. Includes 
private laundry, cable TV, telephone, 
covered patio overlooking quiet, wooded 
ravine. $175/mo. including electricity and 
water. Non-smoking single only. Call 
229-6905 or 229-6906. (8/10) 

HOUSE-available Jan. 1-July 31,1977; 6 
mi. from campus, fully furnished, brick 
ranch on large wooded lot. Central AC, 3 
BR, 2 baths, DR, LR with fireplace, family 
room. $300/month/ excluding utilities. Call 
229-2055, or write: Philip J. Funigiello, 101 
Lawnes Circle, Williamsburg. (9/21) 

WANTED 

ROOMMATE to share 2-BR furnished apt. 
$225/month, utilities included. Located 350 
N. Henry St. Only 5-10 minute, walk froqj 

campus. Call (804) 353-8574, or write 3439 
Hanover Ave., Richmond, 23221. (7/27) 

TWO RESPONSIBLE, quiet female college 
employees seek to rent 2 BR Apt. near 
campus. Call Sarah Tolson at 220-2883 (after 
5:30). (7/27) 

FOUND 

SWISS ARMY KNIFE, Jamestown Rd. in 
front of Campus Center. Describe to claim. 
229-8005. (8/24) 

Published weekly by the Office of 
Information Services during the academic 
year, except when the College is in recess, 
and twice each month in June, July and 
August. 
Majorie N. Heaty, editor 
Karen G. Detwiler, calendar and classifieds 
Publications Office, production 

News, photographs and advertisements 
should be sent to the News Office, 308 Old 
Rogers Hall. 

Calendar items should be sent to Ken 
Smith, keeper of the College Calendar, at 
the Campus Center. 

The deadline for all submissions is 
Wednesday at 5 p.m. for publication the 
following Tuesday. 



Scholars In Law, Theatre, Music Join Faculty 

Thomas H. Williams 
Zollinger Professor 

Continued from First Page 

A prolific writer, Williams has 
written or co-authored seven books 
and texts as well as numerous 
articles published in academic and 
professional journals. 

A graduate of the University of 
Cincinnati, Williams holds masters' 
and doctoral degrees from the 
University of Illinois. 

He is a member of Beta Gamma 
Sigma business honor society and 
Omicron Delta Kappa leadership 
society. 

John Ritchie 

As Tazewell Taylor Visiting 
Professor of Law, Ritchie will serve 
as jurist-in-residence during the 
1976 fall semester at the 
Marshall-Wythe School of Law. The 
professorship honors a member of 

the Tazewell Taylor family of 
Norfolk. 

Prior to assuming his present 
post at the University of 
Tennessee, Ritchie was a professor 
at the University of Virginia fo two 
years. He had taught previously at 
UVa from 1937-52. In 1952 he was 
named Dean and Kirby Professor at 
Washington University, St. Louis. 
The following year he became 
Dean and Professor of Law at the 
University of Wisconsin, a post he 
held until he joined the 
Northwestern faculty in 1957. 

A Phi Beta Kappa graduate of the 
University of Virginia, where he 
received his B.S. and LL.B. degrees, 
Ritchie holds a J.S.D. degree from 
Yale University. 

He has been active in several 
professional associations and 
served as national president of the 
Coif, honorary legal society, as 

Newsmakers 
Norman E. Gibbs, mathematics, 

is symposium chairman for a 
meeting in Williamsburg of over 
200 computer science educators. 
The two day symposium, which 
concludes today, provides a forum 
for discussion of topics of interest 
to those involved in computer 
science instruction at all levels. It is 
sponsored by the Special Interest 
Group on Computer Science 
Education of the Association for 
Computing Machinery. 

William Poole is program 
chairman, while Peter 
Scheuermann is in charge of book 
exhibits for the conference. 

William B. Spong Jr., dean of the 
law school, left Saturday for a 
three-week goodwill visit to Russia 
and several European capitals. He 
is leading a delegation of 14 
Virginia attorneys who will visit 
with legal and judicial officials in 
Brussels, Amsterdam, Moscow, 
Leningrad, Budapest and London. 
The group is following an itinerary 
arranged by the U.S. Department 
of State under its People-to-People 
program. Members are paying their 
own expenses for the trip, 
co-sponsored by the Virginia Bar 
Association, which Dean Spong 
heads. 

At the 51st annual conference of 
the International Association of 
Auditorium Managers, held July 
12-15 in New Orleans, H. Lester 
Hooker Jr. was named a Certified 
Facilities Executive. Hooker, who is 
director of William and Mary Hall, 
was one of 27 recognized for 
professional excellence and 
personal achievement in the 
management of public assembly 
facilities. IAAM President Mildred 
Grood presented Hooker with an 
engraved plaque and certificate 
of award. 

James D. Lavin of the modern 
languages department and Wallace 
B. Gusler, curator of furniture at 
Colonial Williamsburg, are 
co-authors of a forthcoming book 
on antique European firearms. The 
book, to be published by the 
Colonial Williamsburg Foundation, 
will accompany an exhibit at the 
1977 Antique Forum of 94 guns and 
pistols, dating from the early 16th 

to mid-19th centuries. Lavin has 
previously published a history of 
Spanish firearms and numerous 
articles on the subject. 

Governor Godwin has appointed 
Librarian William C. Pollard to the 
Virginia State Historical Records 
Advisory Board. Pollard will serve a 
one year term ending June 30, 
1977. The seven-member board is 
responsible for advising the 
National Historical Publications and 
Records Commission of records 
problems in Virginia and for 
reviewing applications for grants to 
individuals and institutions in the 
state. 

In the School of Education Mark 
Gulesian has been appointed a 
regional judge for the National 
Council of Teachers of English 
(NCTE) 1976 Achievement Awards 
in writing competition. Gulesian, 
who is the new president of the 
Virginia affiliate of the NCTE, will 
serve on the panel to determine 
which of the Virginia entrants will 
be recommended for an award. 
Some 800 high school seniors 
across the country receive the 
award annually. 

Mini-courses at North Carolina 
Wesleyan College, and 
the role the library played in 
supporting the courses, are the 
topic of an article by Associate 
Librarian Alva W. Stewart. He 
describes the contributions N.C. 
Wesleyan's library made to the 
courses, offered during the May 
term in the school's 4-4-1 plan. The 
article covers a three year period 
and appears in the summer issue of 
Improving College and University 
Teaching, a journal published by 
the Oregon State University Press. 
Stewart was the librarian at 
Wesleyan prior to coming to Swem 
Library in 1971. 

John D. Morgan, associate dean 
of students for residence hall life, 
led a task group during the June 
22-25 Residence Hall Education 
Symposium in Richmond. 
Participants dealt with training, 
purposes and programs for 
residence hall staff. Virginia 
Commonwealth University joined 
with the Continuing Education 
Committee and Commission III: 
Student Residence Programs of the 

American College Personnel 
Association to sponsor the three 
day program. 

Charles Toomajian, director of 
registration and student records, 
and Ross Weeks, Jr., director of 
information services and assistant 
to the president, took part in a 
workshop on Media and Higher 
Education on June 26. Toomajian 
presented a discussion on "The 
Buckley Amendment and Student 
Rights," while Weeks was a 
panelist on the handling of 
sensitive news stories. The annual 
workshop was sponsored by 
Landmark Communications, Inc. of 
Norfolk, owners of WTAR and the 
Virginian-Pilot and Ledger-Star, and 
took place at the Tidewater 
Community College's Frederick 
campus. 

Terry Meyers has published an 
article, "An Interview with 
Tennyson on Poe," in the 
Tennyson Research Bulletin, 
November 1975. Walter Wenska's 
'The Coquette and the American 
Dream of Freedom" has been 
accepted for publication in Early 
American Literature. Both Meyers 
and Wenska are members of the 
English department faculty. 

Six Swem librarians participated 
in the American Library 
Association's annual conference 
last week in Chicago, where 
circulation librarian Robert L. Burr 
presented a paper on "A Behavioral 
Model of Circulation." Research for 
his paper was partially supported 
by a William and Mary faculty 
grant. 

Catalog librarian Mary Lou B. 
Cobb met with members of the 
Technical Services Administrators 
of Smaller Research Libraries 
discussion group, of which she is 
chairman. She also attended 
meetings of three ALA committees 
on which she serves. 

Assistant catalog librarian Berna 
L. Heyman attended a meeting of 
the ALA-SELA membership   . 
committee, of which she is a 
member. 

Others who participated in the 
conference were Beth Bliler, 
Kathryn Blue and Sandra K. 
Peterson. 4,fl 

president of the American 
Association of Law Schools and as 
president of the Judge Advocates 
Association. 

He has also been actively 
involved in the American Bar 
Association, serving as a member 
of the House of Delegates, 1957-71, 
and the committee on evaluation of 
ethical standards, 1965-70. 

The Taylor bequest was made 
several years ago by the late 
Tazewell Taylor, a prominent 
Norfolk attorney, in honor of the 
donor's father and grandfather. 

Professional Actor Arnold Moss 
As a faculty member during the 

fall semester, Moss will teach 
acting classes, as well as direct and 
play the leading role in the 
Theatre's production of 
Shakespeare's "King Lear" and 
present his own one-man show 
called "Windows on America." 

Moss most recently appeared in 
Harold Prince's "Follies" and is 
known for his many movies 
("Salome," "Kim," "Viva Zapata") 
and television guest appearances 
(Hallmark Hall of Fame, "Star 
Trek"). Critics have called Arnold 
Moss one of America's foremost 
professional actors. 

A Phi Beta Kappa graduate of the 
College of the City of New York, 
Moss holds a master's degree from 
Columbia University and a 
doctorate from New York 
University. 

For seven years he was a 
member of the Speech and Theatre 
Department of Brooklyn College. 
He has taught short term seminars 
in theatre at several universities in 
this country and abroad, was 
Distinguished Visiting Professor in 
the Department of Dramatic Arts, 
University of Connecticut at Storrs, 
in 1973-74, and was Visiting 
Professor at Pace University in 
1975. 

Musician Arthur F. Schrader 

Because of his interest in folk 
song and dance, Schrader has both 
organized and performed in several 
folk festivals at Old Sturbridge 
Village, a restoration similar to that 
of Colonial Williamsburg. 

In 1962 he organized the "Old 
Sturbridge Village Singers" to sing 
religious and patriotic music of 
New England composers and the 
following year initiated the 
"Sturbridge Anacreontic Society" 
to perform drinking songs, catches 
and glees. In 1968 he began the 
"Parlor Music Hostesses" to sing 
parlor ballads. 

He was awarded a three year 
grant in 1965 to underwrite eight 
concerts of patriotic and parlor 
music and to begin the Sturbridge 
Martial Band. 

In recent years, Schrader has 
pursued a recording project for all 
types of music performed in Old 
Sturbridge Village. He serves as 
editor for the recording series. 

Schrader holds an A.B. in history 
and an Ed.M. from the University 
of Buffalo. 

He has been a consultant in early 
American music to several 
historical associations, among them 
the Massachusetts and Connecticut 
Revolutionary Bicentennial 
Commissions, the Connecticut 
Historical Society, the New York 
State Historical Association and the 
Ohio Historical Society. 



Take a Campus Tour! 
Want a change of pace during your 
lunch hour this summer? Meet a 
friend for lunch at the Wigwam in 
the Campus Center, and then visit 
some of the many interesting spots 
on campus. Or start your tour by 
bringing a bag lunch and eating it 
in the shade of a tree in the historic 
Wren Yard. 

SIR CHRISTOPHER WREN 
BUILDING-Open daily from 9 a.m. 
to 5 p.m. The oldest academic 
building in continuous use in the 
United Slates, it has served the 
College since 1699. Known through 
most of its life simply as "the 
College," the Wren Building now 
bears the name of the 
distinguished British architect who 
may have shaped its original 
design. According to an early 
account, it was "first modelled by 
Sir Christopher Wren," but was 
later "adapted to the Nature of the 
Country by the Gentlemen there." 

Stop in Room 100, the College's 
Information Center, and pick up a 
campus map. While you're there, 
take a look at the surveying 
instruments on exhibit. Lisa Offley, 
a member of the Information 
Services staff who is responsible 
for the Center, will be glad to 
answer your questions. 

Before leaving the historic area of 
the campus, visit the archaeological 
exhibit of the Virginia Center for 
Archaeological Research. Buried 
treasures from more than 20 
locations throughout the state are 
on display in the museum in the 
basement of the Wren Building. 
Hours are 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. 
weekdays. Enter through the north 
door facing Richmond Road. 

COLLEGE GATES-The Ewell 
Memorial Gates at the intersection 
of Blair and Richmond Roads were 
a gift from Mrs. Beverley Bland 
Muntord in 1932. Two red brick 
pillars are surmounted by iron 
statues of King William and Queen 
Mary, imported from France. At 
one time wrought iron gates, 
decorated with the College seal 
and an eagle poised for flight, 
connected the two pillars. 

CEMETERY-Did you know there is 
one on campus? It's located behind 
Old Rogers Hall, between Monroe 
Hall and Blow Gymnasium. A small 
monument in the tiny graveyard 
marks the burial place of Lucian 
Minor, professor of law during the 
first half of the 19th century. The 
wall surrounding the cemetery is 
dedicated to Benjamin Ewell. 

EWELL HALL~Contemporary art 
from a collection donated to the 
College by alumna Jean Outland 
Chrysler is displayed in the foyer. 
The building is named after 
Benjamin S. Ewell, president of the 
College from 1854 to 1888. He was 
almost solely responsible for the 
College's surviving some of its 
most difficult years. The College 
closed twice during those 
years--once from 1861-1865 due to 
the Civil War, and again from 
1881-1888, for lack of funds. Ewell 
earned the appelation "the old bell 
ringer" during that second period, 
when he had the College bell rung 
at the opening of each academic 
year in order to keep alive the 
College's charter. 

WASHINGTON HALL--A permanent 
exhibit of 17th century artifacts is 
on display in the Flowerdew 
Hundred Museum, located in the 
basement of the building. The 
museum is open to the public 
daily. Enter through the side door 
on the east end of the building. 

The artifacts have been recovered 
from the Flowerdew Hundred 
Plantation, which is located on the 
south bank of the James River in 
Prince George County. Members of 
the anthropology department of 
the College and students have 
been active in archaeological work 
at the site under the auspices of 
the Southside Historical Sites 
Foundation. The site, which is 
extremely well preserved, is of 
particular value to archaeologists 
because so little is known of the 
early colonial period and sites 
dating to the early 1600s. 

more leisurely pace. Laid out in 
1935 on the mall directly west of 
the Wren Building, the sunken 
garden is based on a similar 
treatment of the grounds adjacent 
to Chelsea Hospital in London. 
Boxwood borders the garden, 
backed by crepe myrtle trees. At 
the far end are European cypress, 
firs, pines, maples, oaks and 
dogwood trees. The lovely and 
unusual plantings that distinguish 
the entire campus are due in large 
part to the efforts of the late J.T. 
Baldwin Jr., long-time professor of 
biology. The 1932 graduate of the 
College died in September 1974. 
Ten years ago the Jefferson 
Prospect (so called because, as a 
student Jefferson reportedly 
expressed the view that the 
"College should always look upon 
the country") was extended 
westward, with the completion of 
the Crim Dell area. 

SWEM LIBRARY-Select some books 
for summer reading, or visit the 
gallery and museum located on the 
ground floor. The statue of 
Norborne Berkeley, Baron de 
Botetourt, Colonial Governor of 
Virginia and Rector of the College's 
Board of Visitors, is the central 
feature of the Botetourt Gallery. 
The statue, one of the oldest 
surviving examples of colonial 
statuary in America, was acquired 
by the College in 1801, and until 
1958 stood in the College yard in 
front of the Wren Building. 
Another feature of the Gallery is 
the permanent display of a portion 
of the Library's collection of early 
Virginia portraiture-including 
works by Bridges, Wollaston, Sully 
and others. 
To the east of the Botetourt Gallery 
is the Zollinger Museum, Displayed 
here are the College mace; the 
record book of the Phi Beta Kappa 

1- SIR CHRISTOPHER WREN BUILDING 
2- THE 8RAFFERTON 
3. THE PRESIDENT'S HOUSE 
4. EWELL HALL 
5. WASHINGTON HALL 
6. JAMES BLAIR HALL 
7. OLD ROGERS HALL 
8. MARSHALL-WYTHE SCHOOL OF LAW 
9- MONROE HALL 

10. BLOW GYMNASIUM 
11. OLD DOMINION HALL 

12. BRYAN HALL 
13. GARY FIELD 
14. FRATERNITY BUILDINGS 
15. LANDRUM HALL 
16. CHANDLER HALL 
17. BARRETT  HALL 
18. JEFFERSON HALL 
19. TALIAFERRO HALL 
20. OLD LODGES 
21. COLLEGE HEALTH 

SERVICE-INFIRMARY 

22. CAMPUS CENTER 
23. COLLEGE BOOKSTORE 
24. TR1NKLE HALL 
25. OLD INFIRMARY 
26. TYLER HALL 
27. BROWN HALL 
28. SORORITY COURT 
29. PHI BETA KAPPA MEMORIAL HALL 
30. ROBERT ANDREWS HALL 
31. WILLIAM AND MARY HALL 
32. YATES HALL 

33. ADAIR GYMNASIUM 
34. DuPONT HALL 
36. WILLIAM AND MARY COMMONS 
36. JOHN MILLINGTON HALL 
37. EARL GREGG SWEM LIBRARY 
38. WILLIAM SMALL PHYSICAL 

LABORATORY 
39. HUGH JONES HALL 
40. RICHARD LEE MORTON HALL 
41. BOTETOURT RESIDENCES 
42. ALUMNI HOUSE 
« ROGERS HALL 
44 PSYCHOLOGICAL COUNSELING CENTER 
45 CAMPUS POLICE OFFICE 

Washington Hall is named for the 
first president of the United States, 
who received his surveyor's 
commission from the College in 
1749, when he was 17. Washington 
later became the first American 
chancellor of the College, serving 
from 1788 until his death in 1799. 

BLOW GYMNASIUM-lnterested in 
a more active lunch hour? Try 
jogging or playing handball at Blow 
Gym. Open weekdays from 2-10 
p.m. and weekends from 2-6 p.m. 

ADAIR TENNIS COURTS-lf tennis 
is more to your liking, the Adair 
courts are open daily until 12 
midnight. Plan ahead and sign up 
at the courts early. Located just off 
Botetourt Drive on the new 
campus. 

ADAIR SWIMMING POOL-Cool off 
during recreational swim hours, 2-7 
p.m. daily. 

CAMPUS PATHWAYS, BRICK 
WALKS (more than 10 miles of 
them at last count!) and CARY 
FIELD TRACK offer prime 
opportunities for jogging 
enthusiasts. 

SUNKEN GARDEN and CRIM DELL 
are ideal spots, if you prefer a 

Crim Dell is named for John 
William Henry Crim, a lawyer and 
distinguished alumnus from the 
Class of 1901. An Oriental 
footbridge crosses the pond here, 
and the area is specially landscaped 
with azaleas, camelia, dogwood, 
weeping cherry, mountain laurel, 
magnolia trees, bayberry, and 
evergreen japonica, as well as 
various types of holly, hemlock and 
other trees and shrubs. 

ROGERS HALL-Have you visited 
the newest building on campus 
yet? It houses the philosophy and 
chemistry departments. 

MILLINGTON HALL--A special 
penthouse greenhouse, open to 
visitors daily, tops the building. 
The rooftop location eliminates the 
problem of plant experiments 
being hampered by shade from 
surrounding trees. Included among 
the unusual plants in the 
greenhouse are "babytoes," 
"baseball plants," "living rocks," 
and "tiger jaws," names that aptly 
describe the appearance of the 
plants. 
Orchids bloom in the tropical room 
of the greenhouse, while turtles, 
frogs and other small animals find a 
natural habitat in the greenhouse's 
terrarium. 

society, from its establishment at 
the College in 1776 until 1781; the 
earliest book of faculty minutes, 
and other records and artifacts 
illustrating the growth of the 
College through three centuries. 
Museum hours are 8 a.m.-5 p.m. 
weekdays, 9 a.m.-l p.m., 
Saturdays. 

WILLIAM SMALL PHYSICAL 
LABORATORY-Scientific equip¬ 
ment is on display in the foyer that 
joins the two sections of the 
building. 

ROBERT ANDREWS HALL OF FINE 
ARTS-Fine arts became a part of 
the College's curriculum when 
Thomas Jefferson reorganized the 
school into a university in 1779. 
That year the Reverend Robert 
Andrews, who had served as 
Professor of Moral Philosophy at 
the College since 1777, was made 
"Professor of Moral Philosophy, 
the Laws of Nature and of Nations, 
and of the Fine Arts." 
Several large pieces of sculpture 
given to the College this spring by 
alumnus and artist Joseph Lonas 
are currently on display in Andrews 
foyer. During the summer, works 
created by students are also being 
exhibited in the central foyer. 
Visitors are welcome. 


